
Copy of email received on 4th November 2023 at 11:22 
 
Good Morning all, 
 
I have pasted my debrief below – if you require any further information then feel free 
to drop me an email/call: 
 
Enforcement visit conducted to 12-14 Strathmore Drive, Leeds, LS9 6AB on 
02/11/2023 by YH ICE (OIC I Hanif). 
 
The visit was in response to an illegal working allegation stating Baba Jaga, 
12-14 Strathmore Drive, Leeds, LS9 6AB was employing  

who was working at the premises illegally. Home 
Office systems show  has no permission to work in the UK and as 
such a Para 10(3) warrant was granted and held. 
 
The warrant was granted under the premises name of Baba Jaga. Information 
had been received from the police on 01/11/2023 that a closure notice had 
been served on Baba Jaga recently and as a result it shouldn’t be trading.  
 
A drive-by before the visit confirmed the shop was operating but the signage 
relating to Baba Jaga had been removed.  
 
The team arrived at the premises to conduct the visit at approximately 14:30 
hours. Upon arrival one male was outside the premises and appeared to be a 
delivery driver. Upon entry I observed one male worker behind the counter and 
a female worker on the shop floor. 
 
I approached the male, identified myself and spoke to him to establish the 
circumstances of the business. The male advised the shop was no longer 
called Baba Jaga and was now trading as Gusto. The male stated there was a 
change of ownership on 30/10/2023. I was therefore satisfied it wasn’t 
appropriate to use the warrant to gain entry. I therefore explained the purpose 
of the visit and sought fully informed consent. The male was content to grant 
entry and signed a Notice to Occupier form which was duly served on him.  
 
The male confirmed his identity as Mahdi MOHAMMADZADA,  
IRN national (granted asylum/LTR until ). He stated the new owner 
was Nabaz KARIM – tel . I contacted KARIM who maintained he 
had taken over the business on 30/10/2023 from Omar RASHKA and it was now 
called Gusto.  
 
I was in the knowledge that Mahdi MOHAMMADZADA was a named director 
under the business name of Baba Jaga, as shown on Companies House. I 
spoke to him about this but he claimed he had no knowledge of this and stated 
he had no ownership responsibility when the business was Baba Jaga and had 
no decision making responsibility. He claimed to have been working at the 
business for two weeks. 
 



I passed the information relating to MOHAMMADZADA having some 
association to the business as Baba Jaga to the police and licensing officers 
present for their onward investigations as this may be significant with them 
continuing trading under the new name/ownership.  
 
The female’s identity was confirmed as  

 (granted leave under EUSS until 2027). 
 
A sweep of the premises conformed no other persons were present. I made 
some enquiries with MOHAMMADZADA about but he claimed he did 
not know him and no one of that name worked at the business since it became 
Gusto.  
 
All officers departed the premises at 14:50 hours.   
 
Hope this helps 
 
 
Regards 
 
 
 
Imran Hanif 
Immigration Officer 
Yorkshire & Humberside Immigration Compliance and Enforcement 
Waterside Court (2nd Floor), Kirkstall Road, Leeds, LS4 2QB 
 
Home Office - Immigration Enforcement  

 
 

www.gov.uk/home-office 
 



Copy of email received on 2nd November 2023 at 17:06  
 
Thanks Adrian, 
 
Some new evidence has come to light that link the people currently running the store to Omar 
Rashka and several new documents have been submitted to Company house. None mention Mr 
Karim but demonstrate Omar still has a significant interest in the business.  
 
06/06/23 
Mahdi Mohammadzada who was present on the two visits I’ve made and confirmed to be managing 
the shop .  
He claimed he has been working there only 2 weeks, however was listed on Company house records 
on a PSC01 (notice of individual person with significant control) back in 06/06/23 when Omar 
Rashka was undeniably still the owner.  
 
On 30/10/23 
PSC07 was submitted for Mahdi Mohammadza with notice of ceasing to be an individual person 
with significant control.  
AP01 was submitted  confirming appointment of a new director. The company confirms that the 
person named has consented to act as a director. This was a MR OMAR RASHKA 
CS01 Confirmation statement off full details of Shareholders was submitted detailing the following 
Shareholding 1: Name: MAHDI MOHAMMADZADA 100 shares transferred on 2023-10-30. 0 
ORDINARY shares held as at the date of this confirmation statement. Shareholding 2: Name: OMAR 
RASHKA 100 ORDINARY shares held as at the date of this confirmation statement. So not Mr Karim… 
 
I understand there may be a delay in the details updating but the new documents submitted up to 
now suggest Omar is still very much a part of the business regardless of whether the licence holder 
has changed and the people running the store can be linked to him. Omar Rashka was appointed 
company director on 30/11/23. 
 
I would suggest this demonstrates our concerns that the transfer of license is purely a paperwork 
exercise and actually affects little in how the business operates and our evidence should still be 
relevant. 
 
Regards, 
 
Tim King  
LASBT Case Officer 
Leeds anti-social behaviour team (East) 
Safer Stronger Communities 

 

It is your right to ask how your report of antisocial behaviour is being dealt with. This can be done 
by requesting an ASB case review. 

 


























































